THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
Administrative Law Court

S. Phillip Lenski, Administrative Law Judge

Appellate Case No. 2015-002637

RECEIVED

JUN 14 2017

SC Court of Appeals

Brett Gries Appellant

v.

Aiken County Assessor..... Respondent

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Brett Gries, BBA, MBA, CPA, Retired
680 Implement Road
Aiken, SC 29803
(815) 342-2628
brettgries@aol.com
Appellant (pro se)

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

ISSUE NUMBER ONE: During the Hearing on May 26, 2015 in front of Judge Lenski, Mr. Sapp did intentionally lie in front of Judge Lenski, and the evidence meets the requirements of Felony Perjury (South Carolina Law, Section 16-9-10). In doing so, Mr. Sapp Impeached his Testimony and his Work Product, including his Appraisal.

ISSUE NUMBER TWO: During the Hearing on May 26, 2015, Mr. Sapp and Mr. Jansen made certain statements about the Appraisal Process. Based on South Carolina Law SECTION 12-60-450 and the Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice, Mr. Sapp did NOT follow the Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice in developing his purported Appraisal of 680 Implement Road, at December 31, 2013. Those flaws include the following;

FIRST, Lack of required Record Keeping

SECOND, Vacant Land is NOT an appropriate Comparable, to the Residential Equestrian Property at 680 Implement Road

THIRD, The Assessor is NOT required to Appraise the whole parcel, when the only portion protested was Land Market Value.

FOURTH, The Assessor had multiple errors in his use of the Marshall & Swift Cost Tables.

ISSUE NUMBER THREE: Mr. Sapp's purported Appraisal of the property at 680 Implement Road had a total of \$598,037, of which \$395,745 related to Improvements Market Value, and \$194,876 related to Land Market Value. As the taxpayer had previously agreed to the Appraised Market Value of all Improvements at 680 implement Road, the only issue protested was Land Market Value. While Mr. Sapp's purported appraisal indicated a Land Market Value of

\$194,876, Mr. Sapp, for some unknown reason, increased the Assessed Land Market Value from \$194,876 to \$287,296, an unexplained increase of \$92,420.

ISSUE NUMBER FOUR: As I have expressed from day 1, my Property Tax Protest is for Land Market Value ONLY. I have accepted the Assessed Market Value for ALL Improvements. However, I have been told by the Assessor, and the Assessor testified in Court, that he MUST Appraise the WHOLE Property at 680 Implement Road. They can NOT Appraise the Land Market Value of my Equestrian Property at 680 Implement Road by itself. Based on the facts and other evidence collected, the Assessor's stance is incorrect.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Nature of this action, is that the Appellant protested his 2013 Property Taxes, related to Land Market Value. The Appellant protested the Assessors December 31, 2013 Assessed Land Market Value ONLY. The Appellant accepted the Assessor's December 31, 2013 Assessed Market Value for all Improvements, which included a House and a Barn with a Canopy. Appellant's Protest is for Land Market Value ONLY.

Appellant filled his Request for Conference with the Aiken County Assessor on August, 22 2014. Subsequently the Conference with the Aiken County Assessor was held, and a Request for a Hearing by the Aiken County Board of Assessment Appeals, was Signed & Filed on November 5, 2014. The Case was heard by the Aiken County Board of Assessment Appeals on January 29, 2015. The Aiken County Board of Assessment Appeals ruled in favor of the Aiken County Assessor on the same day, for an Appraised Value of \$598,037, which was for the Whole Property, NOT for Land Market Value ONLY. Appellant filed a Request for a Contested Case Hearing on February 5, 2015. The ALC Hearing was on May 26, 2015. Judge Lenski ruled in favor of the Aiken County Assessor on December 4, 2015, for an Appraised Value of \$598,037, which was for the Whole Property, NOT for Land Market Value ONLY.

Subsequent to the May 26, 2015 ALC Hearing, I reviewed documents which indicate that Mr. Sapp did NOT properly conduct his Appraisal, in accordance with the Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice. As a result, Mr. Sapp's Appraised Market Value of \$598,037 is now suspect.

Further, subsequent to the May 26, 2015 ALC Hearing, I collected documents which indicate that Mr. Sapp perjured himself in front of Judge Lenski. Based on the evidence collected, Mr.

Sapp did intentionally lie in front of Judge Lenski, and that the collected evidence meets the requirements of Felony Perjury (**South Carolina Law, Section 16-9-10**). As a result, Mr. Sapp Impeached his Testimony & Work Product, including his Appraisal, and all are now suspect.

Appellant then filed a Notice Of Appeal on December 18, 2015.

ISSUE NUMBER ONE

During the Hearing on May 26, 2015 in front of Judge Lenski, Mr. Sapp did intentionally lie in front of Judge Lenski, and the evidence meets the requirements of Felony Perjury (South Carolina Law, Section 16-9-10). In doing so, Mr. Sapp Impeached his Testimony and his Work Product, including his Appraisal.

ISSUE NUMBER ONE - FACTS

During the Hearing in front of Judge Lenski, Mr. Sapp provided his Appraisal (ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT H/R. p. 164) which included 29 Specific Adjustments. However, Mr. Sapp provided NO documentation in support of those 29 Specific Adjustments. Under Cross Examination, numerous requests were made for the supporting documentation for Mr. Sapp's 29 Specific Adjustments, and for the supporting documentation for the 21 (greater than \$5,000) Downward Adjustments, which Mr. Sapp did NOT record on his Appraisal. Again, Mr. Sapp provided NO documentation in support of his 29 Specific Adjustments or these 21 (greater than \$5,000) Downward Adjustments he did NOT record on his Appraisal. (Transcript: Page 121 Line 02 through Page 123 Line 01/R. p. 78, line 2-p. 80, line 1, AND Page 132 Lines 06 through 11/R. p. 86, lines 6-11)

Later in my Cross Examination of Mr. Sapp, I asked why there was no Downward Adjustment for the Swimming Pool at Mr. Sapp's Comparable #4. While I did not know this at that time, Mr. Sapp, with his response, appeared to perjure himself in front of Judge Lenski. I have since pulled together evidence, which includes the following;

FIRST, 2014 Property Card, with an effective date of December 31, 2013 (ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT F, for 3042 Farmer Road/R. pp. 154-159), shows a Gunite pool, built in 2006,

with a Market Value of \$20,139. **IT SHOULD BE NOTED**, that this 2014 Property Card, was printed from the information in the Assessors System, which was confirmed by Mr. Sapp (**Transcript: Page 113 Line 08 through Line 11/R. p. 72, lines 8-11, AND Page 119 Lines 03 through 22/R. p. 76, lines 3-22**)

SECOND, Mr. Sapp's visited 3042 Farmer Road (Comparable #4) on 2014.02.06 (**ALC RESPONDENTS EXHIBIT 9/R. p. 188**).

THIRD, When Mr. Sapp prepared his Appraisal, he accessed the Assessors System, to source and confirm information needed for his Appraisal (**Transcript: Page 113 Lines 08 through 16/R. p. 72, lines 8-16**), (**Transcript: Page 115 Line 24 through Page 116 Line 04/R. p. 73, line 24-p. 74, line 4**), (**Transcript: Page 118 Line 18 through Page 119 Line 25/R. p. 75, line 18-p. 76, line 25**)

FOURTH, Mr. Sapp's Testified at the Hearing in front of Judge Lenski, that "at the date of the sale of the property, there was no pool attached to that particular property" (**Transcript: Page 152 Line 3 through Page 153 Line 10/R. p. 99, line 3-p. 100, line 10**).

FIFTH: When you access the Assessors System and Parcel 205-00-06-005 (3042 Farmer Road), the SAME Assessors System used by Mr. Sapp to source and confirm information needed for his Appraisal, the Assessors System continues to show that a Gunite pool, built in 2006, with a Market Value of \$20,139, continues to be attached to this Parcel known as 3042 Farmer Road. This information can be accessed as follows;

- Website: <https://www.aikencountysc.gov/>
- Click-On ONLINE SERVICES
- Click-On LAND RECORDS
- Scroll down and Click-On "Yes, I accept the above statement"
- Click-On Search by Parcel Number

- In the Parcel Identification Number box, enter 205-00-06-005 and then Click-On "Search By Parcel ID"
- Click-On Parcel Number 205-00-06-005
- Scroll to the bottom of the page
- Under "Miscellaneous Improvement Information" under Building Type see "Pool, Gunite (SF)", under Year Built see "2006" and under Market Value see "\$20,139".

SIXTH: When you look at **South Carolina Law, Section 16-9-10**, it states as follows;

SECTION 16-9-10. Perjury and subornation of perjury.

SECTION 16-9-10 (A)(1): It is unlawful for a person to willfully give false, misleading, or incomplete testimony under oath in any court of record, judicial, administrative, or regulatory proceeding in this State.

SECTION 16-9-10 (B)(1): A person who violates the provisions of subsection (A)(1) is guilty of a felony and, upon conviction, must be fined in the discretion of the court or imprisoned not more than five years, or both.

SEVENTH: Thus, based on the above facts, all of which were presented at the Hearing in front of Judge Lenski, Mr. Sapp did intentionally lie in front of Judge Lenski, about the pool at 3042 Farmer Road, Parcel Number 205-00-06-005. Further, based on the provisions of South Carolina Law, Section 16-9-10, Mr. Sapp committed Felony Perjury.

ISSUE NUMBER ONE – ARGUMENT

Mr. Sapp testified that his purported Appraisal was prepared in accordance with the

Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice. The Ethics Rule of the Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice states as follows;

"An appraiser must not engage in criminal conduct."

"An appraiser must not communicate assignment results in a misleading or fraudulent manner."

Mr. Sapp's testimony regarding Comparable #4's pool, breached the **Ethics Rule** of the **Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice**. In accordance with Mr. Sapp's testimony (**Transcript: Page 113 Lines 08 through 16/R. p. 72, lines 8-16**), the information about Comparable #4's pool was in the Assessors System to which Mr. Sapp had access. In accordance with Mr. Sapp's testimony (**Transcript: Page 118 Line 18 through Page 119 Line 25/R. p. 75, line 18-p. 76, line 25**), Mr. Sapp accessed Comparable #4's information in the Assessors System when he was preparing his purported Appraisal. Based on the facts, the information concerning this pool, which was constructed in 2006, was in the Assessors System which Mr. Sapp accessed, when Mr. Sapp was preparing his purported Appraisal. Mr. Sapp then intentionally lied in front of Judge Lenski about this pool, stating that there was no pool on this parcel.

Based on Mr. Sapp's actions, Mr. Sapp's testimony breached **The Ethics Rule** of the **Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice**.

ISSUE NUMBER ONE - REQUEST OF THE COURT

Based on Mr. Sapp's actions, and the evidence collected, Mr. Sapp did intentionally lie in front of Judge Lenski, and that the evidence collected meets the requirements of Felony Perjury (**South Carolina Law, Section 16-9-10**). As such, Mr. Sapp Impeached his Testimony & Work Product, including his Appraisal. Further, Mr. Sapp impeached the credibility and correctness of his 29 Specific Adjustments (**ACL PETITIONERS EXHIBIT H/R. p. 164**), and the 21 (greater than \$5,000) Downward Adjustments that Mr. Sapp did NOT record on his Appraisal. Thus, are all now in question.

Therefore, it is hereby requested, that Mr. Sapp be required to provide detailed supporting documentation, in support of each of his 29 Specific Adjustments (**ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT H/R. p. 164**) AND the 21 (greater than \$5,000) Downward Adjustments (see NOTE following), which Mr. Sapp did NOT record on his Appraisal.

Further, based on Mr. Sapp's actions, order Mr. Sapp to reimburse Mr. Gries, for the cost of this Appeal (\$100.00) and the cost of the Transcript (\$1,196.50) from the May 26, 2015 ALC Hearing.

NOTE: The 21 greater than \$5,000 Downward Adjustments include the following;

Comparable #1:

Framing/Siding \$17,847 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT M/R. pp. 166-168 Line 81, Column J

Living Area Square Footage \$11,133 Downward Adj.

Mr. Sapp's Gross Living Area, Market Value per Sq. Ft. used, AFTER adjustments for Room Count, Garage/Carport and Porch/Patio/Deck = \$89.50/sq. ft.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT H/R. p. 164 Line 17, Column B, Less Line 17, Column C = 483 sq. ft.

Line 17, Column D = \$43,226/483 sq. ft. = \$89.50/sq. ft.

680 Implement Road's Market Value per Sq. Ft. AFTER adjustments for Bath's/Plumbing Fixtures, Porch/Patio/Deck, and Garage/Carport = \$66.44/sq. ft.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT M/R. pp. 166-168 Line 98, Column E = \$285,236

Less: Line 127, Column E (Plumbing Fixtures) = - 27,824

Less: Line 117, Column E (Porch) = - 21,020

Less: Line 125, Column E (Attached Garage) = - 18,588

Sum \$217,804

Total Area 3,278 Sq. Ft.

Remainder Market Value per Square foot \$66.44

Stables/Barns \$23,754 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT M/R. pp. 166-168 Line 48, Column J

Miscellaneous \$6,261 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT M/R. pp. 166-168 Line 54, Column J

Comparable #2:

Stables/Barns \$48,650 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT N/R. pp. 169-171 Line 48, Column J

Comparable #3:

Hardwood Flooring \$7,303 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT O/R. pp. 172-174 Line 76, Column J

Framing/Siding \$18,207 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT O/R. pp. 172-174 Line 81, Column J

Living Area Square Footage \$24,110 Downward Adj.

Mr. Sapp's Gross Living Area, Market Value per Sq. Ft. used, AFTER adjustments for

Room Count, Garage/Carport and Porch/Patio/Deck = \$89.50/sq. ft.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT H/R. p. 164 Line 17, Column B, Less Line 17, Column G =

1,046 sq. ft.

Line 17, Column H = \$93,611/1,046 sq. ft. = \$89.50/sq. ft.

680 Implement Road's Market Value per Sq. Ft. AFTER adjustments for

Bath's/Plumbing Fixtures, Porch/Patio/Deck, and Garage/Carport = \$66.44/sq.ft.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT O/R. pp. 172-174 Line 98, Column E = \$285,236

Less: Line 127, Column E (Plumbing Fixtures) = - 27,824

Less: Line 117, Column E (Porch) = - 21,020

Less: Line 125, Column E (Attached Garage) = - 18,588

Sum \$217,804

Total Area 3,278 Sq. Ft.

Remainder Market Value per Square foot \$66.44

Stables/Barns \$63,879 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT O/R. pp. 172-174 Line 48, Column J

Other Outbuildings \$6,780 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT O/R. pp. 172-174 Line 51, Column J

Comparable #4:

Hardwood Flooring \$34,020 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT P/R. pp. 175-177 Line 76, Column J

Framing/Siding \$45,362 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT P/R. pp. 175-177 Line 81, Column J

Age \$52,500 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT P/R. pp. 175-177 Mr. Sapp Market Value after Adj's =
Line 43, Column G

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT P/R. pp. 175-177 680 Implement Road Market Value
=Line 40, Column D

Stables/Barns \$11,422 Downward Adj.
ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT P/R. pp. 175-177 Line 48, Column J
 Other Outbuildings \$7,493 Downward Adj.
ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT P/R. pp. 175-177 Line 51, Column J
 Miscellaneous \$19,344 Downward Adj.
ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT P/R. pp. 175-177 Line 54, Column J

Comparable #5:

Framing/Siding \$23,044 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT Q/R. pp. 178-180 Line 81, Column J

Living Area Square Footage \$21,851 Downward Adj.

Mr. Sapp's Gross Living Area, Market Value per Sq. Ft. used, AFTER adjustments for
 Room Count, Garage/Carport and Porch/Patio/Deck = \$89.50/sq. ft.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT H/R. p. 164 Line 17, Column B, Less Line 17, Column K =
 948 sq. ft.

Line 17, Column H = \$84,836/948 sq. ft. = \$89.50/sq. ft.

680 Implement Road's Market Value per Sq. Ft. AFTER adjustments for

Bath's/Plumbing Fixtures, Porch/Patio/Deck, and Garage/Carport = \$66.44/sq. ft.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT Q/R. pp. 178-180 Line 98, Column E = \$285,236

Less: Line 127, Column E (Plumbing Fixtures) = - 27,824

Less: Line 117, Column E (Porch) = - 21,020

Less: Line 125, Column E (Attached Garage) = - 18,588

Sum \$217,804

Total Area 3,278 Sq. Ft.

Remainder Market Value per Square foot \$66.44

Age \$13,500 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT Q/R. pp. 178-180 Mr. Sapp Market Value after Adj's =
 Line 43, Column G

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT Q/R. pp. 178-180 680 Implement Road Market Value
 =Line 40, Column D

Stables/Barns \$21,545 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT Q/R. pp. 178-180 Line 48, Column J

Other Outbuildings \$6,300 Downward Adj.

ALC PETITIONERS EXHIBIT Q/R. pp. 178-180 Line 51, Column J

ISSUE NUMBER TWO

During the Hearing on May 26, 2015, Mr. Sapp and Mr. Jansen made certain statements about the Appraisal Process. Based on **South Carolina Law SECTION 12-60-450** and the **Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice**, Mr. Sapp did NOT follow the **Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice** in developing his purported Appraisal of 680 Implement Road, at December 31, 2013. Those flaws include the following;

FIRST, Lack of required Record Keeping

SECOND, Vacant Land is NOT an appropriate Comparable, to the Residential Equestrian Property at 680 Implement Road

THIRD, The Assessor is NOT required to Appraise the whole parcel, when the only portion protested was Land Market Value.

FOURTH, Multiple errors in the use of the Marshall & Swift Cost Tables

ISSUE NUMBER TWO - FACTS

FIRST: LACK OF REQUIRED RECORD KEEPING. Numerous times, including **Transcript: Page 121 Lines 02 through 10/R. p. 78, lines 2-10**, I asked Mr. Sapp about his documentation in support of the 29 adjustments, he made on his purported Appraisal of the Residential Equestrian Parcel at 680 Implement Road. His response to each such request, including **Transcript: Page 121 Lines 02 through 10/R. p. 78, lines 2-10**, was that he had NO such documentation. Further, Mr. Sapp on many occasions, including **Transcript: Page 106 Lines 16 through 20/R. p. 68, lines 16-20**, stated that his purported Appraisal was prepared in accordance with the **Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice**, to which SC.GOV.LLR has a direct link.

In regards to Record Keeping, the Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice state as follows (Record Keeping under Ethics Rule) "The workfile must include: all other data, information, and documentation necessary to support the appraiser's opinions and conclusions and to show compliance with this Rule and all other applicable Standards, or references to the location(s) of such other documentation."

SECOND: VACANT LAND IS NOT AN APPROPRIATE COMPARABLE TO THE RESIDENTIAL EQUESTRIAN PARCEL AT 680 IMPLEMENT ROAD. Numerous times, including Transcript: Page 106 Lines 16 through 20/R. p. 68, lines 16-20, Mr. Sapp stated that he was required to use Vacant Land comparable's to value the land at the Residential Equestrian Parcel at 680 Implement Road. Further, Mr. Sapp on many occasions, including Transcript: Page 106 Lines 16 through 20/R. p. 68, lines 16-20, stated that his purported Appraisal was prepared in accordance with the Uniform Standards Of Professional Appraisal Practice, to which SC.GOV.LLR has a direct link.

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