THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT
S. Phillip Lenski, Administrative Law Judge

Appellate Case No. 2015-002637

Brett GriesAppellant

v.

Aiken County Assessor Respondent

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

James M. Holly (S.C. Bar No. 02572) .
P.O. Box 5925
Aiken, SC 29804
(803) 642-3628
jholly@aikencountysc.gov

Attorney for Respondent

FILED
2015
(803) 642-3628

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
Administrative Law Court

S. Phillip Lenski, Administrative Law Judge

Appellate Case No. 2015-002637

Brett GriesAppellant,

v.

Aiken County AssessorRespondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

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

ARGUMENT

- I. **The decision of the Administrative Law Judge is supported by substantial evidence in the record.**
 - A. **The decision of the Administrative Law Judge as the trier of fact is supported by substantial evidence in the record such that a reasonable mind could have reached the same conclusion.**

The determination of the fair market value of the subject property for the 2014 tax year by the Administrative Law Judge is supported by substantial and convincing evidence and testimony in the record. Final Order (R. pp. 7-15). The Assessor and Mark Sapp, a Certified Residential Real Estate Appraiser with twelve years' experience with the Assessor's Office and approximately eight years of experience in appraising equestrian residential properties in the area of Aiken County where the subject property is located, determined that the fair market value of the subject property as of December 31, 2013, was \$598,037. (R. pp. 34, line 6 - p. 36, line 18; p. 38, line 2 - p. 39, line 8). The testimony and evidence presented by Appellant, the only witness for Appellant, was confusing and lacked credibility. Moreover, most of Appellant's testimony and evidence was not indicative of the fair market value of the subject property. (R. p. 8, Final Order, paragraphs 2, 3).

The appellate review of the decision of an administrative law judge is limited to the record. The appellate court must not substitute its judgment for that of the Administrative Law Judge as to the weight of the evidence on questions of fact. S.C. Code Ann. § 1-23-610(B) (Supp. 2016). The decision of the Administrative Law Judge should not be overturned on factual issues unless the decision is not supported by substantial evidence. S.C. Code Ann. § 1-23-610(B)(e). In determining whether that

decision was supported by substantial evidence, the standard applied by the appellate court is whether, looking at the entire record, there is evidence from which reasonable minds could reach the same conclusion as the trial court. Dorchester County Assessor v. Middleton Equestrian Center, LLC, 414 S.C. 453, 460, 778 S.E. 2d. 919, 923 (Ct. App. 2015); Hill v. SCDHEC, 389 S.C. 1, 9-10, 698 S.E. 2d. 612, 616-617 (2010). Where there is conflicting evidence as to a factual issue, the substantial evidence standard defers to the findings of the trier of fact. Risher v. SCDHEC, 393 S.C. 198, 208-210, 712 S.E. 2d. 428, 434-435 (2011); Olson v. SCDHEC, 379 S.C. 57, 63, 663 S.E. 2d. 497, 500-501 (Ct. App. 2008). In cases involving the valuation of real property for the purpose of ad valorem taxation, the Administrative Law Judge hears the matter de novo and is the trier of fact. Smith v. Newberry County Assessor, 350 S.C. 572, 577-578, 567 S.E. 2d 501, 504 (Ct. App. 2002).

The appraisal, or valuation of the fair market value of the subject property here by the Assessor was triggered by an assessable transfer of interest, that is Appellant's purchase of the subject property on April 3, 2013. (R. p. 8, Final Order, paragraph 1; p. 41, lines 4-7; pp. 189, 194). S.C. Code Ann §§12-37-3130(3),(4), 12-37-3135(A), 12-37-3140, 12-37-3150(A)(1) (2014). This transfer resulted in the appraisal of the fair market value of the subject property by the Assessor as of December 31, 2013. S.C. Code Ann. § 12-37-3140(A)(1)(b).

S.C. Code Ann. § 12-37-930 (2014) establishes the method of valuing property for purposes of taxation:

All property must be valued for taxation at its true value in money which in all cases is the price which the property would bring following reasonable exposure to the market, where both the seller and the buyer are willing, are not acting under compulsion, and are reasonably well

informed of the uses and purposes for which it is adapted and for which it is capable of being used.

Fair market value is the proper measure of the value of real property for purposes of ad valorem taxation. It is the measure of the true value of the property. Lindsey v. South Carolina Tax Commission, 302 S.C. 504, 507, 397 S.E. 2d. 95, 97 (1990); S.C. Code Ann. §§ 12-37-3135(A), 12-37-3140(A)(B); S.C. Code Ann. § 12-60-2510(A)(1)(a) (2014). The proper valuation of real property for taxation is a question of fact. 84 C.J.S. Taxation, § 579 (Sept. 2016 update).

In a challenge by a taxpayer of an assessor's valuation of property, the assessor's valuation is presumed correct. S.C. Tax Commission v. S.C. Tax Board of Review, 278 S.C. 556, 562, 299 S.E. 2d. 489, 492-493 (1983). The taxpayer has the burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that the assessor's valuation is incorrect. This usually is done by the taxpayer proving the actual fair market value of the property. Newberry Mills, Inc. v. Dawkins, 259 S.C. 7, 15-16, 190 S.E. 2d. 503, 507 (1972); Cloyd v. Mabry, 295 S.C. 86, 88-89, 367 S.E. 2d. 171, 173 (Ct. App. 1988).

The Administrative Law Judge who heard first hand all of the testimony and received all of the exhibits in this matter determined that Appellant failed to carry his burden. The Administrative Law Judge found that Appellant failed to offer credible evidence by any means that the Assessor's determination of the fair market value of the subject property was incorrect. Nor did Appellant present his own credible evidence on the fair market value of the subject property. (R. pp. 13-14; p. 107, line 3 - p. 108, line 5; p. 109, line 13 - p. 111, line 4; p. 112, line 5 - p. 114, line 14; p. 129, line 14 - p. 130, line 3).

The record contains more than substantial evidence that the Assessor's determination of the fair market value of the 16.13 acres with a house and barn located in an equestrian subdivision in a desirable location in Aiken County was correct. (R. p. 34, line 6 - p. 63, line 24; p. 64, line 2 - p. 65, line 23; p. 68, lines 2-20; p. 87, line 7 - p. 90, line 18; p. 115, line 2 - p. 120, line 17).

After reassessment was triggered by Appellant's purchase of the property, Mark Sapp, an appraiser with Assessor's Office for twelve years and a State-Certified Residential Mass Appraiser, who was recognized by the Administrative Law Judge as an expert witness, initially determined that the fair market value of the subject property was \$665,000 using the mass appraisal method and system maintained by Aiken County. S.C. Code Ann. § 40-60-20(13),(14),(23),(25) (Supp. 2016). Mr. Sapp was assigned the appraisal because the subject property is located in the area of Aiken County assigned to him by the Assessor since 2007. (R. p. 38, line 2 - p. 39, line 8). The area includes a considerable number of equestrian properties and Hopeland Farms. (R. p. 38, line 21 - p. 39, line 5). Appellant was notified of the new valuation and requested a conference with the Assessor's Office. (R. p. 39, line 17 - p. 41, line 23; p. 194).

After meeting with Appellant, Mr. Sapp undertook an individual parcel analysis of the subject property using the comparable sales method and supplemented that with the review of additional data and information. See, Smith v. Newberry County Assessor, supra, 350 S.C. at 580, 567 S.E. 2d. at 505. (R. pp. 9-11, Final Order, paragraphs 9-13; p. 34, line 6 - p. 63, line 21; p. 64, line 7 - p. 66, line 6; p. 67, lines 4-20). Mr. Sapp selected the sales of five residential properties to compare to the subject property. (R. pp. 9-10, Final Order, paragraphs 9, 10; p. 50, line 3 - p. 52, line 19; pp. 164, 182-190). Mr.

Sapp testified at length before the Administrative Law Judge about his analysis of the fair market value of the subject property. (R. p. 34, line 6 - p. 63, line 21; p. 64, line 5 - p. 66, line 21; p. 67, lines 4-20). Three of the five comparable sales he used came from information that Appellant presented to him. After making adjustments to the five properties as compared to the subject property, the values of the comparables ranged from \$565,233 to \$732,851. (R. p. 184). Appellant did not disagree with comparable sales used by Mr. Sapp. (R. p. 52, line 7). Mr. Sapp did not stop his analysis after completing the comparable sales method of appraisal.

Mr. Sapp next reviewed the sales of vacant land to compare to the value of the subject land. (R. p. 59, lines 12-22). He first analyzed sales of a number of vacant parcels that sold between March 2012 and March 2013. The average per acre sales price of the four parcels was \$17,375. One of these properties is located in Hopeland Farms on the same road as the subject property, is five acres smaller than the subject property and sold for \$25,000 per acre on July 13, 2012. (R. p. 60, line 5 - p. 63, line 24; p. 195). Mr. Sapp then reviewed the sales of vacant parcels in Hopeland Farms located on the same road as the subject property between July 2010 and August 2014. (R. p. 195). He discarded the two sales in 2014 considering only those from July 1, 2010 to May 29, 2013. The sales of those parcels, which had to be cleared and fenced, ranged in price from \$19,500 per acre to \$25,000 per acre. (R. p. 60, line 5 - p. 63, line 24). Again, Mr. Sapp did not stop there in his analysis.

Next, Mr. Sapp also analyzed all sales in Hopeland Farms that are equestrian properties with a residence and some with a stable or a stable being built. (R. p. 63, lines 5-25; p. 191).

After completing his comparable sales method analysis and his additional analyses discussed above, Mr. Sapp, as an expert appraiser, determined that the fair market value of the subject property was \$598,037. (R. pp. 10-11, Final Order, paragraph 13; p. 41, lines 17-22; p. 192). In doing so, he also reduced the per acre land value from \$22,000 to approximately \$19,000. (R. p. 62, lines 9-23). See footnote 1, above.

Assessor, Richard Jantzen, who is a Certified General Mass Appraiser and has been appraising real property for approximately twenty years, testified and was recognized as an expert in residential real property appraisals. (R. p. 11, Final Order, paragraph 14; p. 115, line 2 - p. 116, line 23). He has served as the Assessor since 2009. (R. p. 115, lines 5-9). The Assessor testified that he reviewed Mr. Sapp's appraisal, analysis and work and found it was an appropriate and fair appraisal. (R. p. 116, line 24 - p. 117, line 24; p. 126, lines 17-23). He further testified that he reviewed the materials submitted by Appellant, and they did not change his opinion of Mr. Sapp's appraisal. (R. p. 11, Final Order, paragraph 15; p. 117, line 1 - p. 118, line 23).

Appellant's Brief criticizes the Assessor for citing what he refers to as a non-existent section of the South Carolina Code. (Appellant's Final Brief, p. 22). Reference to the Record and the South Carolina Code establishes that the Assessor was referring to South Carolina Code Ann. § 12-60-2510, which the Assessor correctly cited in his testimony. (R. p. 121, line 14 - p. 122, line 13). In this testimony, the Assessor explained why Appellant's appeal was of the fair market value of subject property as a whole. S.C. Code §§ 12-37-930, 12-37-3135(A)(B); 12-37-3140(B). (R. p. 121, lines 14-23).

Based on the foregoing, the Assessor respectfully submits that there is substantial evidence, including the testimony of two expert witnesses, in the record to support the

decision of the Administrative Law Judge, and that Appellant failed to carry his burden of proving the Assessor's valuation was incorrect.

B. Appellant's argument concerning the testimony of the appraiser about the existence of one improvement, i.e., a pool, on a property used as one of five sales in the appraiser's comparable sales analysis was a matter of credibility and the weight of the evidence for the trier of fact to decide.

During the cross-examination of Mark Sapp by Appellant, Appellant asked Mr. Sapp if he made an adjustment in his comparable sales analysis for a pool located on the property identified as "Comparable Number 4", 3042 Farmer Road. (R. p. 184). Mr. Sapp's response to the Appellant's question about the property card for that property listing a pool was:

. . . I am not sure on that one, Mr. Gries, to be honest with you. When I looked at the property for the date of the sale, which was 2013, there was no pool attached to the property.

(R. p. 99, line 3 - p. 100, line 1).

Then, the Administrative Law Judge asked Mr. Sapp and he answered:

THE COURT: And you don't recall there being a pool, sir?

A: No.

(R. p. 100, lines 15-17)

The value on the pool on this comparable was stated by Appellant to be \$20,139. (R. p. 99, lines 6-11). This property sold on November 20, 2013, for \$525,000. (R. p. 184). Assuming the pool was located on the property as of December 31, 2013, the failure of the appraiser to make an adjustment was immaterial as was already determined by the Administrative Law Judge since he asked the appraiser about the pool and had the property card in evidence which listed a pool on the property. (R. pp. 154-159). Mr.

Sapp made many adjustments to the five comparable properties as shown on Exhibit 5. The credibility and weight of Mr. Sapp's testimony was for the Administrative Law Judge to determine. Dorchester County Assessor v. Middleton Place Equestrian Center, *supra*, 414 S.C. at 460, 778 S.E. 2d. at 923 (Ct. App. 2015).

In addition to the foregoing, Appellant's argument on alleged perjury, in addition to being without merit, apparently is based on purported evidence collected by Appellant after the hearing before the Administrative Law Judge which is not in the record. S.C. Code Ann. § 1-23-610(B). (Appellant's Final Brief, pp. 8-10). This Court has admonished Appellant a number of times through its Orders not to raise matters outside the record. Furthermore, Appellant did not raise this issue before the Administrative Law Judge. Food Mart v. SCDHEC, 322 S.C. 232, 471 S.E. 2d. 688 (1996).

C. Appellant presented no credible or persuasive evidence concerning the fair market value of the subject property.

Appellant presented testimony and exhibits attempting to challenge the Assessor's determination of the fair market value by arguments and confusing calculations that were based on assessed values and property cards, not fair market value. (R. pp. 8, 11, Final Order, paragraphs 2, 3, 15; p. 33, lines 8-10; p. 107, line 12 - p. 108, line 5; p. 113, line 11 - p. 114, line 14; p. 128, line 23 - p. 130, line 2; p. 131, lines 1-25). Appellant did not present evidence from an independent appraiser or any other person or expert witness.

Based on the testimony, exhibits and record before him, the Administrative Law Judge found and concluded:

Though the [Appellant] testified that the property was worth somewhat less than the purchase price of \$475,000, he offered no credible evidence to support his argument, either through the testimony of an expert witness, or by other means adduced.

...

The [Appellant] presented no evidence or testimony that his method of valuation was an approved or recognized method of valuation.

. . .

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